
 

1 

 
HISTORIC DISTRICT REVIEW BOARD 

Regular Meeting 
Town Hall 

October 16, 2012 
4:30 p.m. 

 
At approximately 4:30 p.m. Chairman Russ Dunton, having established a quorum, called to order 
the Regular Meeting of the Historic District Review Board.  In addition to Chairman Dunton, present 
were Bob Sellers, Jan Neville, Dianne Davis and Terry Strub. Also in attendance were Town Planner 
Tom Bonadeo and Assistant Town Clerk Amanda Hurley as well as Donna and Greg Kohler, 
applicants for the accessory building modifications at 711 Tazewell Avenue. There was one 
member of the public in attendance. 
 
Dianne Davis gave the invocation followed by the recitation of the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
Motion made by Dianne Davis, seconded by Bob Sellers, and unanimously approved to 
accept the agenda as presented. 
 
The Historic District Review Board reviewed the minutes of the September 18, 2012 Regular 
Meeting.  
 
Russ Dunton pointed out the second sentence in the last paragraph on the third page and explained 
his intent. The language was changed to read “Russ Dunton expressed dissatisfaction for the plans 
for the third floor balcony.” 
 
Motion made by Dianne Davis, seconded by Jan Neville, to approve the minutes of the 
September 18, 2012 Regular Meeting as amended.  The motion was unanimously approved.   
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
A. 711 Tazewell Avenue – Accessory Building Modifications: 

Dianne Davis noted a typographical error in the last paragraph of the staff report.  
 
Tom Bonadeo began by explaining that any accessory building over 200 square feet required a 
building permit. Tom Bonadeo gave a brief overview of the accessory building at 711 Tazewell 
Avenue and stated that windows and doors would be modified but, both the roof and the vinyl 
siding would remain as they were. This property was the Fig Street Inn and it had a Conditional 
Use Permit for a Bed and Breakfast and had been operated as such for 19 months. Tom Bonadeo 
noted that the accessory building would be used as an additional bedroom space and 
recognized that this was allowed under the Conditional Use Permit. The accessory building was 
not visible from the street, but it could be seen from the alley way. There were photos of the 
current walls as well as the window replacement drawings. The first photo and accompanying 
drawing showed that there would be three windows along the east side of the building; two 
would remain where they were, two would be covered over and the door would be covered 
over and replaced with a window. The second photo showed that a window would be added on 
the side where there were no windows currently and the third photo of the north side would 
have two windows added and the air condition unit in the middle would be taken out and vinyl 
siding added to cover the hole it left. 
 
Russ Dunton confirmed that there was no change to the footprint of the building. Tom Bonadeo 
stated that the building was not part of the original structure, but was within the overlay 
district; therefore, it required review from the Board. Tom Bonadeo noted that the changes 



 

2 

would not only be an improvement to the alley side of the building, but also an enhancement to 
the Kohler’s business by creating another bedroom space. 
 
Terry Strub asked the Kohlers if the building was handicap accessible. Mrs. Kohler responded 
by stating that the Bed and Breakfast was not required to be handicap accessible, however, this 
building was at ground level and could be deemed “slow walker friendly” with one small six 
inch step into the accessory building. 
 
Dianne Davis commented on the building’s use as a bedroom. Tom Bonadeo replied that the use 
of the building was not stated in the staff work, but he had mentioned at the beginning of the 
meeting that it had a bedroom and bathroom facility. Tom Bonadeo commented that the 
Planning Commission allowed this through the Conditional Use Permit and the Historic District 
Review Board did not review this because there was no exterior work done to the original 
renovation of the house. Russ Dunton commented that the Historic District Review Board rarely 
got involved in the use of a building. 
 
Tom Bonadeo asked the Kohlers how many bedrooms were allocated and Mrs. Kohler 
responded by stating they currently had four, but they were licensed for six. Mrs. Kohler stated 
that there were four in the house and this accessory building would create the fifth unit. Tom 
Bonadeo informed the Board that when five bedrooms were exceeded, additional building 
codes and regulations needed to be followed such as sprinklers and other modifications. 
 
Tom Bonadeo summarized the modification by stating there was no change to the footprint, 
roof or siding except for repairs where necessary. Only certain window and door areas would 
be closed and windows would be added. This accessory building was also referred to as the 
pool house; however, the pool was no longer there.  
 
Tom Bonadeo recommended the approval of the modifications to the Board and stated the 
Kohlers were available to answer any questions. Russ Dunton asked the Board if there were any 
concerns or questions and commented that he did not have any issues for improving the 
exterior of the building. Terry Strub asked if the accessory building was connected to the house 
in any way and Mr. Kohler replied that there was a two foot covered breezeway. Russ Dunton 
asked how many building lots the property was on and the Kohlers responded that it was seven.  
 
Tom Bonadeo indicated that a motion was in order for the recommendation and Russ Dunton 
asked the Board what they proposed to do. 

 
Motion made by Jan Neville, seconded by Terry Strub, to approve the accessory building 
modifications for 711 Tazewell Avenue. The motion was unanimously approved. 
 
OLD BUSINESS: 
 
There was no old business to review. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
 

Tom Bonadeo introduced newly appointed Historic District Review Board member Terry Strub. He 
explained that a Steering Committee for the second phase of the Trail Project was being formed and 
they were looking for one member from the Historic District Review Board and one member from the 
Planning Commission for this committee. The scope of the section was North Peach Street and 
Washington Avenue. Terry Strub was recommended by Tom Bonadeo and agreed to serve on the 
committee since she lived on Washington Avenue. Russ Dunton asked if anyone else on the Board was 
interested in serving on this committee, but there were no other volunteers.  
 
 



 

3 

Tom Bonadeo mentioned that he had been in contact with David Gammino and his architects were 
working on new drawings for the Hotel balcony modification. The Hotel planned to close sometime in 
November for the winter season and they would have the new plans to submit for the Historic District 
Review Board’s November meeting. If the Board approved those plans, the Hotel would be able to work 
on those modifications during the winter months. Russ Dunton asked if the Hotel was still doing 
business. Tom Bonadeo replied that statistically, 1,500 people stayed there this summer and 44 
countries were represented. Tom Bonadeo calculated the following; i) if 1,500 people stayed only one 
night, that would potentially require two meals which would be 3,000 meals; and ii) if those people 
stayed more than two nights, that would be 4,500 to 7,000 meals in this Town. Tom Bonadeo remarked 
that that was an astronomical impact on the Town. Russ Dunton commented that he read in an article 
that meals tax revenue for the Town had increased significantly from last year to this year and Tom 
Bonadeo noted that the Hotel was one of the reasons for this and also mentioned that the Rittenhouse 
Motor Lodge had received more business due to overflow from the Hotel when it was full. 
 
Dianne Davis read aloud a thank you card from Linda Carola addressed to Russ, Jan, Bob and Dianne. 
 

Motion made by Dianne Davis, seconded by Bob Sellers, to adjourn the Historic District 
Review Board Regular Meeting.  The motion was unanimously approved. 
 
 
   
       Chairman Russ Dunton 
 
  
Asst. Town Clerk 

 


